



# SPECIAL MEETING OF ELECTORS

### HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 953 SOUTH COAST HIGHWAY, DENMARK ON MONDAY, 19 FEBRUARY 2018.

### Contents

		Page No.
1.	INFORMATION ON HOW THE SPECIAL ELECTORS MEETING IS CONDUCTED	2
2.	RECORD OF ATTENDANCE & APOLOGIES	2
3.	DECLARATION OF OPENING	4
4.	PURPOSE OF MEETING	9
5.	CLOSURE	10

### 1. INFORMATION ON HOW THE SPECIAL ELECTORS MEETING IS CONDUCTED

Pursuant to the Local Government Act 1995 and the Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996.

- The only matter to be discussed at this meeting is the matter detailed under Item 4 of this Agenda.
- Each Elector\* who is present is entitled to one vote on each matter to be decided at the meeting but does not have to vote.
- All decisions are to be made by a simple majority of Electors present.
- Voting is to be conducted so that no voter's vote is secret.
- Only Electors are permitted to vote.
- The Shire President is to preside over this meeting.
- The meeting procedure to be followed, other than those listed above, is to be determined by the person presiding.
- All Electors present are required to sign the Attendance Register, available at the entry to the Council Chambers, with their name and address.
- Please state your name and suburb of residence (locality) before making your statement or asking your question.
- The Shire President will call for a mover and a seconder for any motions.
- The CEO is to cause Minutes of the proceedings to be kept and preserved and ensure that copies of the Minutes are made available for inspection by members of the public before the Council meeting at which decisions made at this meeting are first considered.
- All decisions made at the meeting are to be considered at the next Ordinary Council meeting or, if that is not practicable, at the first Ordinary Council meeting after that meeting; or at a special meeting called for that purpose, whichever happens first.

\* In relation to a district or ward, means a person who is eligible to be enrolled to vote at elections for the district or ward.

### 2. RECORD OF ATTENDANCE/APOLOGIES/LEAVE OF ABSENCE

**ATTENDENCE – Electors Present:** Cr Ceinwen Gearon (Shire President) Cr Peter Caron (Deputy Shire President) Cr Mark Allen Cr Kingsley Gibson Cr Jan Lewis Cr Ian Osborne Cr Janine Phillips Cr Roger Seeney Cr Rob Whooley Mr Bill Parker (Chief Executive Officer) Mr Gilbert Arlandoo (Director Infrastructure and Assets) Mrs Annette Harbron (Director Sustainable Development) Mr Cary Green (Director Corporate and Community Services) Ms Claire Thompson (Executive Assistant) Miguel Pez Yasmin Bartlett **Beverley Ford** Clem Wright Geoff Bowley Beth Franz Geoff Franz Joss Harman Pam Harman Nick Whishaw Luba Ricketts John Ricketts Roy Allmond **Kees Koning** 

Tony Wilson Sylvia Travers Wendy Edgeley Brian Wilson Ray Wyle Heather Wyle Tony Farrall George Farquhar Walter Pederick Jill Smith Ken Smith Shirley Motteram Lydia Kenyon Steve Bondini Anna Ramrath Matt Ramrath Zdenka Underwood Tony Pedro Murray Thornton Sarah Bondini Karen Cussons Cyril Edwards Polly Edwards Bronnie Wallace John Schindler Mike Travers Mike Bentley Adrian Baer Christine Blamey Cressida Rubinich Silvia Lehmann Nigel Marsh Kerry Leahy Jim King Margaret King **Tony Chinnock** John Jones Marilyn Bolton Donna Carman Melissa Howe Katie Bewley Christina Cairns Marnie Armstrong Philip Rowe **Diane Harwood** Basil Schur Chris Grain Annie Grain Conrad Kenyon John Rice Teiga Murray

<u>Non-Electors Present (not on Electoral Roll)</u> Jamie Falls Kristi McMullan Kenneth Bewley

APOLOGIES: Nil

#### 3. DECLARATION OF OPENING/ANNOUNCEMENT OF VISITORS

6.04pm - The Presiding Person, Shire President, Cr Gearon, declared the meeting open and read out the "Information on how the Special Electors Meeting is Conducted" under Item 1 on the Agenda.

Cr Gearon acknowledged the land on which the meeting was being held and the traditional custodians of the land, the Bibbulman and Minang people.

Cr Gearon stated that she would also like to show her respect for their elders past, present and into the future.

The Shire President announced that she would allow a period for public questions and asked if any of the Electors would like to speak.

#### PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

#### 1. Mrs Lydia Kenyon

Mrs Kenyon thanked the Shire President for accepting the Electors request to hold the Special Electors Meeting and advised that she had a petition containing 88 signatures from local residents in support of the meeting and its motions.

The Shire President accepted the petition noting that it would be tabled.

Mrs Kenyon stated that she hoped that Council recognised the considerable community interest and that she understood that the Chief Executive Officer would be providing an update on the project.

The Shire President responded that the Chief Executive Officer could provide an update if that was what the Electors present desired.

Mrs Kenyon referred to a letter from the Minister for Local Government which highlighted that part of the Local Government Act review included ways to increase community participation in local government decision making. Mrs Kenyon stated that she was pleased with the proposed amendment.

The Shire President requested that the Chief Executive Officer provide an update on the Denmark East River Precinct Project to the Electors.

The Chief Executive Officer stated that the Shire had issued a media release earlier confirming that two new agreements had been signed. Mr Parker said that one of the agreements was for the eastern precinct which included the industrial area and connector roads and the second agreement was for the western precinct which included connector roads and a bridge over the Denmark River.

Mr Parker advised that a contractor for the work had been appointed and that Landcorp and the Denmark Chamber of Commerce would be issuing a joint media release advising of the appointment, which he was pleased to say was a local contractor.

Mr Parker stated that the Shire had been focussing on completing the required Integrated Planning and Reporting which was due by June 2018 however he was happy with the progress on the eastern precinct. Mr Parker said that the western precinct works had been on hold whilst awaiting the finalised agreement.

Mr Parker advised that the Shire had commissioned a traffic management study which would be looking at traffic movements within the CBD, potential river crossings and emergency evacuation. Mr Parker said the study was expected to be completed by March 2018. Mr Parker noted that the Council would need to make a decision on a location for an additional river crossing by July 2018.

### 2. Mr Tony Pedro

Mr Pedro said that he believed the Shire to be prioritising evacuation and emergency with respect to the western precinct however he believed that the location proposed could have many issues. Mr Pedro stated that in the case of an emergency, he did not believe that sending people east would necessarily be the best option and perhaps the Council should be looking at emergency evacuation facilities in town such as McLean Oval.

The Chief Executive Officer stated that the traffic management study would be looking at a number of different scenarios and that the data from the study would help inform Council's decision.

### 3. Ms Wendy Edgeley

Ms Edgeley said that the intention of the draft motions in the Agenda were clear and that she believed them to be a strong message from the community which were three fold. Ms Edgeley stated that the first was to ensure the process was exhaustive on determining where the bridge was to be situated, the second was to insist on having all the information and the third was to ensure that public money was not wasted or used inappropriately.

Ms Edgeley congratulated the Shire President, Councillors and the Chief Executive Officer on commencing to obtain additional information such as the traffic management study. Ms Edgeley stated that whilst it could be possible for timeframes to slip, given that a decision was needed by July 2018, but she hoped that Council would ensure that it had all the information it needed prior to making a decision, even if it meant not adhering to particular timeframes.

Ms Edgeley stressed the importance of keeping the community informed throughout the process and in particular giving them sufficient time to also digest all of the information that the Council received prior to making any decision. Ms Edgeley said that she hoped that the Councillors had open minds and were prepared to change their minds depending upon information that may be received.

The Shire President responded stating that even though there were timeframes, the Council were working with supportive Ministers and that she was confident that should they need to defer a decision, in order to obtain all relevant information, they would have the support of the State Government.

### 4. Mr Murray Thornton

Mr Thornton sought clarification on whether the words "signatories below" in draft motion 1 meant the signatories on the Special Electors Meeting Request or the Attendance Register for the meeting.

The Shire President advised that she believed the wording meant the signatories to the request however the motion would be open to debate.

### 5. Mr Tony Chinnock

Mr Chinnock referred to reference to suburb under Item 1 stating the Denmark had localities not suburbs. Mr Chinnock referred to the Chief Executive Officer's update stating that it was hard to receive without knowing any dollar figures for each of the projects. Mr Chinnock noted that there were Roads to Recovery signs at the intersection of East River Road and Denmark-Mount Barker Road and asked whether any treatment for the intersection had been determined.

The Chief Executive Officer advised that Main Roads WA had advised that they only treatment that they would accept would be a roundabout.

Mr Chinnock stated that he believed that a roundabout would be the most expensive option particularly given that there are fibre optic cables in the vicinity.

Mr Chinnock said that he believed the costings for the project was rubbery and he was concerned that given that the State Government funding dollars were fixed, the only way to obtain additional dollars, if required, was through ratepayers.

#### 6. Mr John James

Mr James referred to a comment from the Shire President in the Denmark Bulletin which stated that an additional crossing would alleviate the trucks going through Denmark.

#### The Shire President clarified that it would remove some heavy traffic but not all.

Mr James asked how this would be the case when the trucks would just be diverted from South Coast Highway to Scotsdale Road with both resulting in the trucks entering Denmark. Mr James raised concern that the diversion would mean that the trucks would be passing through an area where there was a school, hospital, palliative care and retirement villages.

The Shire President responded stating that the Shire were doing a number of studies which would better inform the Council in order to make a decision on the location for an additional river crossing. Cr Gearon added that the studies would be exploring a much broader area than that of just East River Road.

#### 7. Ms Yasmin Bartlett

Ms Bartlett asked whether there would be an opportunity to transfer the funding to a different location should one be identified in any of the studies.

The Chief Executive Officer responded that they would need to wait until the completion of the study to see if an alternative location was identified and if so, then the Council would need to approach the State Government to see if the funding could be transferred.

Ms Bartlett raised concerns about the documentation which had been used to identify the East River Road location, stating that she believed that the Local Planning Strategy had been pushed through without appropriate community consultation. Ms Bartlett noted that she believed the community had indicated that they did not want Option B. Ms Bartlett said that she had had it confirmed that Main Roads WA had included upgrades to the Churchill Road Bridge in next year's budget and urged Council to focus on other projects such as lobbying the State Government to continue with the Waste Water Treatment Plan upgrade project.

Ms Bartlett said that Denmark already had three river crossings and requested Council not to spend any Royalties for Regions money on pursuing an additional one but rather use the funds to make other roads safer. Ms Bartlett suggested that if Council found a better location for a river crossing but could not use the State Government funding there, then they should return the money.

The Shire President advised that the Shire were doing a lot of work to determine the best way forward, not just undertaking a traffic management study, and that the Integrated Planning and Reporting Framework including an Asset Management Plan which also assist the Council in making an informed decision regarding the project.

#### 8. Ms Karen Cussons

The President of the Denmark Residents and Ratepayers Association, Ms Cussons, advised that the Association had met last week and considered the draft motions. Ms Cussons said that they had had approximately 50 members at the meeting, including the Chief Executive Officer and Councillors and that they had decided not to vote on draft motion 1.1 because it related directly to signatories.

Ms Cussons provided a summary of the votes collected and counted on the other motions which had been in support for draft motions 1.2, 2.1 and 2.2.

#### 9. Mr Miguel Pez

Mr Pez said that he believed the issue seemed to be where, how much and who and asked whether there had actually ever been a study done which had determined that Denmark even needed another bridge.

The Shire President advised that the traffic management study would determine this.

#### 10. Mr Matt Ramrath

Mr Ramrath asked whether the consideration was for a bypass for heavy haulage.

The Chief Executive Officer responded stating that there had been discussions in the past about a bypass road and it had been mentioned through the Strategic Community Plan consultation process that it should be something that Council considers in the future.

#### **11. Mr Wally Pederick**

Mr Pederick referred to a previously submitted petition which had contained 700 signatures informing Council that they wished Council to proceed with a bridge at East River Road.

Mr Pederick said that, as a former Fire Control Officer before moving to Denmark, his main concern was the evacuation of people and urged Council to get on with the job.

#### 12. Ms Kristi McMullan

Ms McMullan highlighted how special the old growth forest was which was located where the East River Road bridge had been proposed to be built. Ms McMullan said that she believed that the community had expressed its desire not to have any road built at that location and that the community needed to be the custodians of such a special area.

The Shire President said that she recognised the passion of the Electors present but asked that the comments and questions dealt with the motions on the Agenda and not any other matters.

#### 13. Ms Christina Cairns

Ms Cairns talked about the forest at East River Road stating that it was not just a few trees and that the works that had been proposed previously involved extensive clearing.

Ms Cairns referred to a document which had mentioned that old forest was considered to be extremely bush fire prone and therefore she believed that Option 3B would be the worst place to build an additional bridge.

#### 14. Mr Geoff Bowley

Mr Bowley referred to a previous speaker's comment that the Local Planning Strategy had been pushed through and sought clarification on how the Strategy was planned and developed. Mr Bowley also sought clarification as to whether Main Roads WA were in fact planning to undertake upgrades to the Churchill Road bridge.

The Chief Executive Officer advised that he was aware that Main Roads WA had a proposal in their 2018/19 forward works to upgrade the Churchill Road bridge to two lanes.

The Shire President said that the development of a local planning strategy was a very strict process however neither she nor the Chief Executive Officer had been with Shire at the time and therefore were unable to comment.

Mr Bowley added that he had been a resident at the time when the Strategy had been developed and did not believe it had been pushed through.

#### 15. Ms Josie Mitchell

Ms Mitchell stated that she believed that the community consultation had been lacking during the development of the local planning strategy to the point that she believed the community had been surprised when the draft had been advertised in 2011.

Ms Mitchell highlighted a number of provisions in the document, including flagging the Agricultural College land as residential land, which had raised concern for the community and that whilst a number of submissions had raised these concerns, the Council had not amended the document.

Ms Mitchell said that there had been a final clause added to the document before it went to the Western Australian Planning Commission (WAPC) which was a commitment to community consultation. Ms Mitchell referred to the Business Case which had been used to secure funding for the East River Road project noting that the document had been kept confidential and had not been available at any time for community input. Ms Mitchell urged Council to return the funding.

#### 16. Ms Beverley Ford

Ms Ford referred to part 2 of motion 1 noting that it indicated that the community supported road upgrades. Ms Ford asked whether the funding for both projects would mean that funding for other roads would not be available in future years.

The Chief Executive Officer stated that the plan was to initially allocate three years of Roads to Recovery funding to the projects however that wouldn't mean that there would be no money to service or improve existing road infrastructure.

#### 17. Mr Ken Bewley

Mr Bewley noted a level of bitter polarity amongst attendees which he had observed a year ago when the matter had been discussed. Mr Bewley stated that he believed it was important to congratulate the Council and the Executive on taking on the community's concerns prior to making any decision. Mr Bewley asked how the Council dealt with the polarity.

The Shire President responded that the Council recognised that there would always be issues of polarity within a community however the Chief Executive Officer had been asked to focus on the Integrated Planning and Reporting framework which, once completed, would ensure more processes would become more transparent. The Shire President stated that the first step had been to develop the Strategic Community Plan which had included extensive consultation with the community and that whilst everyone may not always agree, people should have confidence in the process.

#### 18. Mr Mike Travers

Mr Travers referred to Motion 1, part 2 and Motion 2, part 1, stating that he did not believe that there had been any independent study done in the past which had determined whether Denmark needed a bridge and if so, where the best position would be. Mr Travers said that extra research would be required in order for Council to make an informed decision.

### 4. PURPOSE OF THE MEETING

A request signed by 162 different Electors was submitted to the Shire President on Monday, 22 January 2018 requesting a Special Meeting of Electors for the following purpose.

The purpose of the Special Meeting is to discuss and find agreement on the following draft motions;

**DECISION 1 &** MOTION 1 MOVED:BEVERLEY FORD

SECONDED: MIKE TRAVERS

- 1. That this Special Electors Meeting request the Denmark Shire Council to register the objections of the signatories below to any allocation of Roads to Recovery money towards the proposed East River Road Bridge Project; and
- 2. That the Meeting advise the Council that it believes that, for the purpose of better general traffic flows and better ingress and egress during emergency response scenarios, the maintenance and upgrade of existing roadway infrastructure should be the foremost expenditure priority.

CARRIED

### **DRAFT MOTION 2**

- 1. That this Meeting request that the suspension on the Royalties for Regions funding, allocated to the East River Bridge Project, be continued until the following have been completed.
  - a) a full Denmark Emergency Response Plan, with traffic flow study;
  - b) the Asset Management Plan;
  - c) the Denmark Integrated Planning and Reporting Framework, with resultant redraft of the Local Planning Strategy; and
- 2. That should it not be possible to continue this suspension, the Meeting requests Council to resolve to return the Royalties for Regions funding for this road bridge project.

### **DECISION 2**

MOVED: GEOFF BOWLEY

SECONDED: TONY FARRELL

That Draft Motion 2 be split into parts 1 and 2.

CARRIED

### **DECISION 3**

MOVED: YASMIN BARTLETT

### SECONDED: KERRY LEAHY

That this Meeting request that the suspension on the Royalties for Regions funding, allocated to the East River Bridge Project, be continued until the following have been completed.

- a) a full Denmark Emergency Response Plan, with traffic flow study;
- b) the Asset Management Plan; and
- c) the Denmark Integrated Planning and Reporting Framework, with resultant redraft of the Local Planning Strategy.

### AMENDMENT

MOVED: TONY FARRALL

SECONDED: GEOFF BOWLEY

That the words "with resultant redraft of the Local Planning Strategy" be removed from part c).

LOST

THE ORIGINAL MOTION WAS THEN PUT AND CARRIED

### DECISION 4 MOVED: LYDIA KENYON

SECONDED: JIM KING

That should it not be possible to continue this suspension, the Meeting requests Council to resolve to return the Royalties for Regions funding for this road bridge project. CARRIED

### 5. CLOSURE

8.07pm – There being no further business to discuss, the Presiding Person, Shire President, Cr Gearon, declared the meeting closed.

FAO: President Ceinwen Gearon, and CEO Bill Parker Denmark Shire 953 South Coast Highway PO Box 183, Denmark WA 6333

From: Lydia Kenyon 44 Hollings Rd, Denmark, WA 6333

19<sup>th</sup> February 2018

Dear President Gearon,

As pertaining to Special Electors Meeting Request Petition in relation to East River Road Bridge Project, submitted on the 16<sup>th</sup> January 2018.

Enclosed: Petition signed by ...... Denmark Electors.

Yours sincerely,

Lydia Kenyon

0419579950/98483999

To: The Chief Executive Officer of the Shire of Denmark. We the residents and ratepayers of the Shire of Denmark and surrounds, whose names, addresses and signatures are provided below, request the registration of our support for the January/February 2018 Denmark Electors Special Meeting Request, under Section 5.28 of the Local Government Act 1995, with motions regarding the amendment or cessation of the East River Road Bridge Project.

The purpose of the Special Meeting is to discuss and find agreement on the following draft motions: 1.(1) that this Special Electors Meeting request the Denmark Shire Council to register the objections of the signatories below to any allocation of Roads to Recovery money towards the proposed East River Road Bridge Project; and (2) that the Meeting advise the Council that it believes that, for the purpose of better general traffic flows and better ingress and egress during emergency response scenarios, the maintenance and upgrade of existing roadway infrastructure should be the foremost expenditure priority.

Full name of resident	Street address and post code	Signature	Date
Zoe Car		lear	6.2.18
Oona Mansau	- 1	ongens au	c 19-2.18
Rance Boog		Rip	19 Feb 2018
Kanne Jones		Canal Jam	19 Feb 2018
Sarah Porri.		Sarappori.	19 2 2018
Tamala Ridge	2	3 Atold.	19/2/18
Xanthe fourne		2 Abourne	19-2-18
GEDRE TAYLOR		g gray	19/2/18
Melante Trenow		2 Parn	2 19/2/18

To: The Chief Executive Officer of the Shire of Denmark. We the residents and ratepayers of the Shire of Denmark and surrounds, whose names, addresses and signatures are provided below, request the registration of our support for the January/February 2018 Denmark Electors Special Meeting Request, under Section 5.28 of the Local Government Act 1995, with motions regarding the amendment or cessation of the East River Road Bridge Project.

The purpose of the Special Meeting is to discuss and find agreement on the following draft motions: 1.(1) that this Special Electors Meeting request the Denmark Shire Council to register the objections of the signatories below to any allocation of Roads to Recovery money towards the proposed East River Road Bridge Project; and (2) that the Meeting advise the Council that it believes that, for the purpose of better general traffic flows and better ingress and egress during emergency response scenarios, the maintenance and upgrade of existing roadway infrastructure should be the foremost expenditure priority.

Full name of resident	Street address and post code	Signature	Date
Sarah Cogan	4	te	19/2/18
Sarah Coyan Sanina Dentra		s Sted	19/2/18

#### community for the following motions:

#### The purpose of the Special Meeting is to discuss and find agreement on the following draft motions:

1.(1) that this Special Electors Meeting request the Denmark Shire Council to register the objections of the signatories below to any allocation of Roads to Recovery money towards the proposed East River Road Bridge Project; and (2) that the Meeting advise the Council that it believes that, for the purpose of better general traffic flows and better ingress and egress during emergency response scenarios, the maintenance and upgrade of existing roadway infrastructure should be the foremost expenditure priority.

Full name	Street address and post code	Signature	Date
TANIA STIRNELL		level	22/12/2017
DavidRastrick Anejela Dickingu		R	4/1/2018
Angela Dicking		for Dictusion	6.1.18.
			e.

community joi the johowing motions:

## The purpose of the Special Meeting is to discuss and find agreement on the following draft motions:

1.(1) that this Special Electors Meeting request the Denmark Shire Council to register the objections of the signatories below to any allocation of Roads to Recovery money towards the proposed East River Road Bridge Project; and (2) that the Meeting advise the Council that it believes that, for the purpose of better general traffic flows and better ingress and egress during emergency response scenarios, the maintenance and upgrade of existing roadway infrastructure should be the foremost expenditure priority.

Street address and post code	Signature	Date
		22/12/17
	Street address and post code	Street address and post code

The purpose of the Special Meeting is to discuss and find agreement on the following draft motions: 1.(1) that this Special Electors Meeting request the Denmark Shire Council to register the objections of the signatories below to any allocation of Roads to Recovery money towards the proposed East River Road Bridge Project; and (2) that the Meeting advise the Council that it believes that, for the purpose of better general traffic flows and better ingress and egress during emergency response scenarios, the maintenance and upgrade of existing roadway infrastructure should be the foremost expenditure priority.

2.(1) that this Meeting request that the suspension on the Royalties for Regions funding, allocated to the East River Bridge Project, be continued until the following have been completed: (a) a full Denmark Emergency Response Plan, with traffic flow study; (b) the Asset Management Plan: and (c) the Denmark Integrated Planning and Reporting Framework, with resultant redraft of the Local Planning Strategy; and (2) that should it not be possible to continue this suspension, the Meeting requests Council to resolve to return the Royalties for Regions funding for this road bridge project.

- -----

Street address and post code	Signature	Date
		1
	11211-	18/12/17
	Mours	
	Street address and post code	Street address and post code Signature S. Dlub

The purpose of the Special Meeting is to discuss and find agreement on the following draft motions: 1.(1) that this Special Electors Meeting request the Denmark Shire Council to register the objections of the signatories below to any allocation of Roads to Recovery money towards the proposed East River Road Bridge Project; and (2) that the Meeting advise the Council that it believes that, for the purpose of better general traffic flows and better ingress and egress during emergency response scenarios, the maintenance and upgrade of existing roadway infrastructure should be the foremost expenditure priority.

B. WONG- Jaan MERRIFIELD John Lindoth gol Repart	Signature Ball 224-b) 24	Date Data Data
John hin Dorthad	22fred ghy	21/12/17
John hin Dort Had Repped	Sty	21/12/17
mare		ALT
Winer	e	20/12/17.
Ben Marshal	Strafal	21/12/17
MIKENATUME	White	2112/17
J.FRIAN	SAD,	21/2/17
K. Mulder	Ker Milder	21/12/17.
B. MULSER	 per	21/12/12.
GUS MELLIR	1	

To: The Chief ⊾

Denmark and surrounds, whose names, dual esses and signatures are provided below, request the registration of our support for the January/February 2018 Denmark Electors Special Meeting Request, under Section 5.28 of the Local Government Act 1995, with motions regarding the amendment or cessation of the East River Road Bridge Project.

The purpose of the Special Meeting is to discuss and find agreement on the following draft motions: 1.(1) that this Special Electors Meeting request the Denmark Shire Council to register the objections of the

signatories below to any allocation of Roads to Recovery money towards the proposed East River Road Bridge Project; and (2) that the Meeting advise the Council that it believes that, for the purpose of better general traffic flows and better ingress and egress during emergency response scenarios, the maintenance and upgrade of existing roadway infrastructure should be the foremost expenditure priority.

Full name of resident	Street address and post code	Signature	Date
ROWALD CURRIE	4 6-	Parsa Com	6/2/18
Herrictle & Creper	R	3 A. E. Cunie	- 612/18
Barry Munyard		Barray Muny o	1 7/2/18
Acarander Huntley		(ÅC)-	5 16/2/18

1.(1) that this Special Electors Meeting request the Denmark Shire Council to register the objections of the signatories below to any allocation of Roads to Recovery money towards the proposed East River Road Bridge Project; and (2) that the Meeting advise the Council that it believes that, for the purpose of better general traffic flows and better ingress and egress during emergency response scenarios, the maintenance and upgrade of existing roadway infrastructure should be the foremost expenditure priority.

Full name of elector	Street address and post code	Signature	Date
Joanne Sinclair		and	18.12.17
Julie Pepper		Jan	18.12.17
Kaey Olton		Kolton	18/12/17
SARAH JACOB		333	18/12/17
Bridger Echerly	_		10/1/13
MARGARET HUNT	E	net	19/12/17
Pat latteridon	<u>)</u>	Pattudos	19/12/17
Borbara Wilson	<u>I</u>	Mulia	19/12/17
Annie Stres	_	Am. Dymas	21/12/17
Vous York	L	QU	a/01/18
Tony Wilson	L	anglon	9/01/18
Timothy Sinclair	E	38	10/01/18

The purpose of the Special Meeting is to discuss and find agreement on the following draft motions: 1.(1) that this Special Electors Meeting request the Denmark Shire Council to register the objections of the signatories below to any allocation of Roads to Recovery money towards the proposed East River Road Bridge Project; and (2) that the Meeting advise the Council that it believes that, for the purpose of better general traffic flows and better ingress and egress during emergency response scenarios, the maintenance and upgrade of existing roadway infrastructure should be the foremost expenditure priority.

Full name of elector	Street address and post code	Signature	Date
RIJTH PRICE MATILADA NouMANUA DEB KINGOLN		Jat In hice	24-12-17
DEB Kingdon		Mith Inface	2512-17
0		0	÷

of our support for the January/February 2018 Denmark Electors Special Meeting Request, under Section 5.28 of the Local Government Act 1995, with motions regarding the amendment or cessation of the East River Road Bridge Project.

The purpose of the Special Meeting is to discuss and find agreement on the following draft motions: 1.(1) that this Special Electors Meeting request the Denmark Shire Council to register the objections of the signatories below to any allocation of Roads to Recovery money towards the proposed East River Road Bridge Project; and (2) that the Meeting advise the Council that it believes that, for the purpose of better general traffic flows and better ingress and egress during emergency response scenarios, the maintenance and upgrade of existing roadway infrastructure should be the foremost expenditure priority.

Full name of resident	Street address and post code	Signature	Date
simone Walson		SLQ	2.2.18
Bad Garle		BN	2/2/18
FlatTrok		Herm	2.2.18
Kype Collyer	c	Callupn:	2.2.18
honald Currice		Montes no	3.2.18
Cormel Appleby		Cury.	5-2-18
Nicole Sikys		s Altri	5-2-18
Suzi Cooper		fea	5-2-18
Simone Colema		Sim	8 2.18
DENISE BULLEN	J	Dullen	10.2.18
SONIA DEZIUS		Squis	10.2-18.
SHEILA MYLING		Sayling	11/2/18
			, , ,

Project; and (2) that the Meeting advise the Council that it believes that, for the purpose of better general traffic flows and better ingress and egress during emergency response scenarios, the maintenance and upgrade of existing roadway infrastructure should be the foremost expenditure priority.

Full name of elector	Street address and post code	Signature	Date
PHILIP CLIVE MATT		114	
HILLIP CLIVETIATT	46035	4 ATRA	10 25/12/2017
MATTH MSAN DORDTHEA	Ews	An Atto	us 25-12-201
		A	
ARON ASTON	-E	KG4.	- 25.12-17
KRISTINA VAR	lovi	" this	n 20.12.17
ike Bruba	A	shot.	28.12.17

signatories below to any allocation of Roads to Recovery money towards the proposed East River Road Bridge Project; and (2) that the Meeting advise the Council that it believes that, for the purpose of better general traffic flows and better ingress and egress during emergency response scenarios, the maintenance and upgrade of existing roadway infrastructure should be the foremost expenditure priority.

Full name of elector	Street address and post code	Signature	Date
Kira Schimmelp	6m	Allerey	\$ 17.12.17
LEITH MADDOCL		& Maddon	-le 22-12-1-
Jule Ruscore		gn.	22.12.1
Tohn Schudte		- I Schend	la 22-12-17
Amber Cardon.		Lorda	~ 22.12.17
KRISTI MOMULA	(c)	Throng	- 23-12-4
Miranda Clohessy	/	N/lehe	my. 4/01/0
Andrew Dicking	<u>k</u>	Alih	5-1-18
	2		
	2 V		

#### Bridge Project.

The purpose of the Special Meeting is to discuss and find agreement on the following draft motions: 1.(1) that this Special Electors Meeting request the Denmark Shire Council to register the objections of the signatories below to any allocation of Roads to Recovery money towards the proposed East River Road Bridge Project; and (2) that the Meeting advise the Council that it believes that, for the purpose of better general traffic flows and better ingress and egress during emergency response scenarios, the maintenance and upgrade of existing roadway infrastructure should be the foremost expenditure priority.

Full name of resident	Street address and post code	Signature	Date
Barbar Rose Abling		B.Abling	11/2/2018
Maft Egan		WAT TEN	11/2/2018
Phillip Geoffrey Light.		Phillip G. Mm	1. 11/2/2018.
Denisia Menglet		dugto	1/2/2018
Myles Mitchell	Z	AA,	11/2/2018
Jessie Gloede		Gleece.	11/2/2018
Emily Grace		ECOLA	11/2/2018.
Alex Ware		Azla	11/2/2018
Losie Ledor		Chestit	) 15/02/2015
Difionels		Store	- 15/02/201
Ellen Somas	7	Jong 8	15/2/17
PARON MALANA		E A	15.02.17

the Local Government Act 1995, with motions regarding the amendment or cessation of the East River Road Bridge Project.

The purpose of the Special Meeting is to discuss and find agreement on the following draft motions: 1.(1) that this Special Electors Meeting request the Denmark Shire Council to register the objections of the signatories below to any allocation of Roads to Recovery money towards the proposed East River Road Bridge Project; and (2) that the Meeting advise the Council that it believes that, for the purpose of better general traffic flows and better ingress and egress during emergency response scenarios, the maintenance and upgrade of existing roadway infrastructure should be the foremost expenditure priority.

Full name of resident	Street address and post code	Signature	Date
AMAS DONALD		GN	121.1.1
C. FORD		- Mn	18/1/18
BEVELLEX FOR)		Balad.	18/1/18
clout Southly		glad	18-1-18
STEVE		philadfield	18/1/18
Jake Jones		pape	28/1/18
Blake Cole	e	the	28/01/18
Easpia Brillan.		· AR	28/01/18
Gill Atkinson		Cattle	28/1/18
Touturson		WBay JED	28/1/18
Julie Marsh		Du	13/2/18
		_	